
CITY OF HANOVER 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

OCTOBER 24, 2016 
 
 
CHAIR           BOARD MEMBERS   
STAN KOLASA      JIM SCHENDEL 
        MICHELLE ARMSTRONG 
COUNCIL LIAISON     DEAN KUITUNEN 
DOUG HAMMERSENG       MICHAEL CHRISTENSON 
         
         
 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance: 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Approval of Minutes from the September 26, 2016, Planning Commission Meeting  

 
4. Citizen’s Forum 

 
5. Public Hearings 
 
6. Unfinished Business 

 
7. New Business 

a. Site Plan Review of JS Stewart Properties Building 
b. Site Plan Review of Public Works Facility 

 
8. Reports and Announcements 

a. Planning Commission Reports 
b. Liaison Report 
c. Staff Reports 

 
9. Adjournment 
 
 
 



CITY OF HANOVER 
PLANNING COMMISION MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 26, 2016 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
Stan Kolasa called the September 26, 2016, Planning Commission Meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  Members 
present were Stan Kolasa, Jim Schendel, Michelle Armstrong, Mike Christenson, and Dean Kuitunen.  Also 
present Council Liaison Doug Hammerseng, City Planner Cindy Nash, and Administrative Assistant Amy 
Biren.  Citizens present:  Clark Lee, Janis Reeves, Thomas Jones, Dave and Nancy Sibley, Stephanie 
Gleason, Lynn and Steve Beise, Suzanne and Dan Heinecke, Mark Mischke, and other guests.   
 
Approval of Agenda 
MOTION by Schendel to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Christenson.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Approval of Minutes from the August 22, 2016, Regular Meeting  
MOTION by Schendel to approve the August 22, 2016, minutes as presented, seconded by Armstrong.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Citizen’s Forum 
 Stephanie Gleason, 11875 Riverview Road:  feels that the park redesign should come before the 
Planning Commission and encourages the Commission to get involved in it.  See attached letter and handout 
from Ms. Gleason. 
 
Public Hearings 
 Amendment to Zoning Ordinance Related to Floodplain 
Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:07 pm.  Nash reviewed 
the information which will need to be updated regarding the new FEMA Flood Maps and the ordinance 
which is impacted.  Nash went through the amendments to the ordinance which would update it including 
the addition of a definition for “Flood Insurance Rate Map”.  She did leave the General Floodplain District 
information in the ordinance for future expansion of Hanover and in case it is needed.  Nash explained that 
she drafted Section 11 (Nonconformities) a little differently since Hanover is not a high risk area of 
flooding.  Board members asked questions related to flood insurance, how many residents will be affected, 
and what is the City’s part in it.  Nash explained that WSB, the City’s engineering firm, will send letters to 
those residents affected by the changes and the next steps that will need to be taken.  Biren said she would 
check with WSB to see when the letters would be going out to residents.  If residents do need help, they 
can contact the City and then WSB will work with the resident to resolve any issues. 
 
Kolasa asked if there was anyone from the audience that would like to speak.  There was no one that wished 
to speak.  Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and reopened the Planning Commission at 7:35 pm. 
 
Motion by Armstrong to recommend approval of the drafted ordinance with the addition of the Flood 
Insurance Rate Map definition and any additional feedback from the DNR, seconded by Schendel. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Amendment to Zoning Ordinance Relating to the Orientation of Single Family Homes 
Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:38 pm.  Nash stated 
that based on the direction from Council, staff had advertised this public hearing and drafted an amendment 
regarding the orientation of single family homes on a lot.  The amendment is modeled on ones found in 
Iowa and Indiana. 
 



Kuitunen asked for a definition of a “through lot” and verification that corner lots were not affected by this 
amendment.  Nash explained that a “through lot” is one where there is frontage on both the front and rear 
of the home.  She verified that the amendment would only affect interior lots where there are homes on 
both sides of the property and through lots.  Corner lots would not be included. 
 
Clark Lee, 525 Kadler Avenue:  Reviewed his understanding of RA, Residential Agriculture, lots and how 
these lots would not be affected by the amendment.  He acknowledged that when development occurs to 
the west of Crow River Heights, current residents bordering this area will have homes located on property 
behind them.  He gave an example of a home with minimal windows and an undefined “front façade” that 
could be permitted under the current ordinance.  Lee feels that “perpendicular” and “sideways” needs to be 
stricken from the amendment and other language inserted to cover other options.  He feels that Subsection 
1 is contradictory to what Council wants.  Lee said that he called Sioux City, Iowa, regarding this ordinance 
and was told that it was put in place in order to deal with problematic lots along the river.  Lee went on to 
talk about lots that were once buildable, but may not be currently since environmental protections have 
been put in place.  He would like to see “perpendicular” and “sideways” stricken and omit Subsection 2.1 
in the exceptions. 
 
Thomas Jones, 540 Kadler Avenue:  He has talked with a realtor and the realtor said that homes that change 
the look of a neighborhood will decrease the value.  He also believes that Subsection 2.1 allows anyone to 
build what they want and does not believe this is acceptable.  He would like to see this section removed and 
language addressing the front facing façade be included. 
 
Janis Reeves, 10342 Kalen Lane:  She explained that she and her family moved to Hanover from a small 
town in Illinois where all of the homes were very similar.  When the family moved to Hanover, they had to 
find a house quickly and really liked what they saw in Hanover—a small town, rural lots, and homes that 
were different from one another.  Over the past four years, she has seen the empty lots being filled with 
new homes and new residents moving in.  Reeves stated she is in favor of leaving the ordinance the way it 
is as there does not appear to be a problem and sees an amendment such as this as limiting future building.  
She would like to see the ordinance remain as written so that families can move here and build “their” type 
of home. 
 
Suzanne Heinecke, 560 Kadler Avenue:  Appreciates the draft and sees it as a starting point.  She also stated 
that it is a big deal to her family. 
 
Mark Mischke, 10123 Kaitlin Avenue:  Said that his question may not apply directly to the orientation of 
homes, but wondered what rights neighbors have when something is built, whether it is the orientation of 
the home or how it impacts a wetland. 
 
Nash responded that all neighborhoods are planned for where the water will flow.  When a neighbor changes 
the topography of the land and therefore the flow of water, the City may get involved, but usually it remains 
a civil matter between neighbors.  When a building permit comes in, part of the requirement is having a 
certified survey and this is reviewed.  Lee interrupted saying that Minnesota residents can collect 100 
signatures to request an environmental assessment worksheet.  Nash replied that is true that 100 citizens 
can petition for one and there is a certain process that is followed if the State deems the petition viable.  
Mischke said he is concerned about the how much water is on an empty lot from the recent rainfalls.  Nash 
understands his concerns.  
 
Steve Beise, 505 Kadler Avenue:  Thank you for working on this.  He feels that the exceptions need to be 
looked at and make sure the language is fair and easily understood. 
 
Lynn Beise, 505 Kadler Avenue:  Invited the Board members to come out to look at the neighborhood to 
see how a differently oriented home would look amidst the current homes. 
 



Hammerseng asked if Dave and Nancy Sibley would like to speak to the amendment as this would have a 
direct impact on the type of home they could build on the lots 500-520 Kadler Avenue. 
 
Dave and Nancy Sibley, 6005 Goldenrod Lane N, Plymouth:  He said that when they were interested in 
buying the lots, they came to the City and asked about the type of house that could be built on the lot since 
there are wetlands on the properties.  There was not anything prohibiting the type of house they wanted.  
Hammerseng asked if they had looked at alternate areas on the two lots.  Dave replied that they actually 
had looked at building the house on the 500 Kadler Avenue lot, locating the house further back, but that 
would need a wetland setback variance for the driveway.  The house, if built there, would still be slightly 
angled, but would be more front facing than the original house site on 520 Kadler Avenue.  He also said 
that they are planning on consolidating the lots.  Nancy said they are coming from a neighborhood that has 
many different styles of homes.  Christenson asked if the Sibleys had any concerns about water on their 
property.  Dave replied no, they did not have any concerns. 
 
Suzanne Heinecke:  She said she is concerned about water coming into her yard.  She is familiar with the 
neighborhood where the Sibleys currently live and that is not our neighborhood. 
 
Nash did a public service announcement letting the audience know that anyone can purchase flood 
insurance. 
 
Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and reopened the Planning Commission at 8:25 pm. 
 
Armstrong asked for clarity regarding the Council’s decision to send this back to the Planning Commission.  
Hammerseng said that the direction was vague and he asked for clarification, too.  Council wanted to make 
sure the subject was clearly reviewed.  Hammerseng went on saying that Council wants to take care of 
existing residents but at the same time look to the future.  There is concern about the chance of something 
like a uniquely oriented house happening.  What the Planning Commission and Council recommends will 
affect everyone and the future needs to be considered:  do we work within the guidelines versus going to 
the expense of changing an ordinance with an amendment that will impact everyone? 
 
Lee said he talked with Armstrong about the value of a home during the selling process and if he can prove 
that he took a loss, he can be aggrieved and take it to court with the City. 
 
Kolasa stated that the public hearing is closed and the public was heard.  He may choose to recognize 
audience members, but the current discussion is between the Planning Commission members.   
 
Armstrong said that the difficulty is to come up with something that is concrete yet vague.  If you ask 10 
different realtors, you will get 10 different opinions.  It is not common to have an odd orientation of a home 
on a lot.  It is also understood that people may work around the rules.  In her opinion, she is inclined to go 
with the draft, but you have to look at the houses around it, too.  She asked to hear the other member’s 
opinions. 
 
Kuitunen said that he made the motion at the last meeting stating that there didn’t need to be a change in 
the ordinance.  The Board spent the summer researching and discussing how to make Hanover less 
restrictive, but Council thinks that we should take a look at this.  He questioned how to deal with the pie 
shaped lots and that a perpendicular home couldn’t be built on it, but it wouldn’t be truly parallel to the 
road because of the lot shape and the curve in the road. 
 
Schendel said to leave it alone and not amend the ordinance.  We can continue to change things all the time, 
but people build and change things like drainage on their lots, so how does that get controlled? 
 



Christenson said to leave it the way it is.  Perhaps adding language regarding a primary entrance and a front 
facing façade would be beneficial if a change is needed.  There are too many variables—even if someone 
would create something like what has been discussed, the house would not be re-sellable.  
 
Nash reminded the members that this amendment would be applied to every lot in Hanover.  A PUD would 
have to explain the exceptions the developer would want in new area.  She sees this as a part of the ordinance 
that a developer wouldn’t necessarily be aware of and then be caught off guard because it was not in the 
PUD.  She didn’t put completely parallel as part of the amendment because there are very few homes in 
Hanover that are truly parallel to the road. 
 
Kolasa also stated that he did not feel a need for this amendment.  The Sibleys want to build a certain type 
of house and the lot may not fit the house.  To change the ordinance for one lot doesn’t make sense and it 
will impact the future lots. 
 
Armstrong said that most builders would not build a house perpendicular on the lot. 
 
Nash agreed with Armstrong and added that the minimum garage requirement in Hanover affects how the 
house is built particularly if there is space issues on the lot.  Also, front doors are usually built to be front 
facing so guests can find the entrance to a home. 
 
Armstrong asked Hammerseng if this was enough information to bring back to Council. 
 
Hammerseng said that what he heard is that the group doesn’t support the draft amendment, but no one 
wants to have a perpendicular house by them, so we can’t leave it (the ordinance) alone.  We need to take 
a look at the definitions. 
 
Hammerseng asked if the challenging lots identified last year need to be dealt with individually and possible 
have a variance given. 
 
Nash gave her opinion:  The City wants to make everyone happy, but realistically, not everyone will be 
happy.  The ordinances are already restrictive.  Should a home be closer than allowed within a setback and 
look similar to the neighborhood or is the wetland setback more important and the house looks different 
than other houses? 
 
Kuitunen asked how the amendment should be written based on the curved streets and pie shaped lots in 
Hanover.  Nash replied that was the reason “parallel” was not included in the amendment.  She also said 
that she didn’t want to put in specific measurements as there are different ways to measure and that would 
add confusion.  If the Board desires, the exceptions in the amendment may be removed and others put in 
their place. 
 
Kuitunen said to leave the exception relating to RA lots in the amendment. 
 
Nash went on to explain that when ordinances are very restrictive and limits the uses of the property to such 
a degree that it deprives the owners of the use or devalues the property that is known as a regulatory taking. 
There can be legal consequences. 
 
Nash also went on to say that some ordinances are very specific and contain graphic illustrations showing 
homes that have been turn 90 degrees and are “perpendicular”. 
 
Nash said that she had met with the Sibleys and they are willing to do a lot consolidation and will submit 
when the building permit is submitted.  The second house plan and site located on 500 Kadler Avenue 
would need a wetland setback variance.  This variance would allow the driveway to be located within the 
wetland setback 10 feet or less.  The building pad is set at a slight angle.  If the Sibleys go with the first 



house plan and site located at 520 Kadler Avenue, a wetland setback variance would also be needed if a 
more front facing house with architectural features was desired.  Currently, on that site is the plan for a long 
house that is not facing the street, but does not interfere with the wetland setback.  She clarified that the 
variances needed on either lot are in the wetland setback and not the actual wetland.  The City would not 
grant a variance to build in a wetland. 
 
Jones asked to be acknowledged to speak.  Kolasa agreed.  Jones said that he would support a wetland 
setback variance for the house to be built at 500 Kadler Avenue. 
 
Lee also asked to speak.  Kolasa agreed.  Lee said that he, too, would support a house at 500 Kadler Avenue 
and that it would look nice. 
 
The Beises asked to speak.  Kolasa agreed.  Steve said that the 500 Kadler Avenue lot would be better and 
that he would be okay with the house being angled.  Lynn asked if they would be able to put up a shed. 
 
Biren answered Lynn saying that she had already advised the Sibleys that a shed would not be allowed as 
it is only allowed in the rear yard for that zoning district. 
 
Nancy Sibley said that the builder actually prefers the 500 Kadler Avenue lot building pad rather than the 
first plan on 520 Kadler Avenue. 
 
Nash reviewed:  to accomplish what has been discussed, the exception in 2.1 related to topography and 
natural features would be removed from the amendment; the variance process would be utilized for some 
lots; and is the home front facing on the lot. 
 
Armstrong said that she is concerned about definitions and getting too specific.  Hammerseng said that it is 
not possible to capture all of the variables and instances that could occur in just one ordinance, and that this 
was a good compromise. 
 
MOTION by Schendel to recommend approval of the amendment to the ordinance related to single family 
dwellings with Section 2.1 relating to topography and natural features be removed from the amendment, 
seconded by Armstrong. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Unfinished Business 
 None 
 
New Business 
 None 
 
Reports and Announcements: 
Planning Commission: 
Kolasa reminded members that the 125th Celebration will be on October 8th. 
 
Staff: 
Biren updated the members on the realtor’s sign by Crow River Heights:  The realtor will be taking it down. 
 
Biren said that there will training money available next year for board members to attend various planning 
related workshops.  She covered a few hosted by Government Training Services.  Members expressed 
interest in attending. 
 
 
 



Adjournment 
MOTION by Christenson to adjourn, seconded by Kuitunen.  Motion carried unanimously.   
Meeting adjourned at 9:20 pm. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
Amy L. Biren 
Administrative Assistant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 



   

Collaborative Planning, LLC 
145 Hamel Road, Suite D 

Medina, MN  55340 
763-473-0569 

Memorandum 

Date: October 20, 2016 

To: Planning Commission 

From:  Cindy Nash, City Planner 

RE: J.S. Stewart Companies – Site Plan 

An application has been received for the construction of an industrial building in the I-3 zoning district.  A copy of 
the site plan and building elevations are included in your packets. 

The design of the plans assumes the simultaneous construction of this industrial building with the City’s public 
works building to the west.  In the event that the City’s project does not proceed, some modifications may be 
needed related to stormwater management, including ponding.  It is requested that these modifications, if 
needed, be allowed to be approved at a later date by staff. 

A portion of the grading is proposed to occur outside of the property boundary that will be owned by the City.  A 
right of entry will be needed in order to proceed. 

Staff has reviewed the proposal and find it to be in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and other City 
regulations.  A comment memo from the City Engineer is included for your reference. 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the site plan be approved subject to the following conditions: 

1.  Development of the site must be in substantial conformance with the plans prepared by Civil 
Engineering Site Design and last revised on October 11, 2016.  If the site plans require 
modifications due to either not being able to obtain the rights of entry required, or due to the 
adjacent site not developing concurrently, then the plan revisions may be approved by the City 
Engineer and City Planner. 

2. Comments from the City Engineer as outlined in his memo dated October 18, 2016 must be 
addressed. 

 



477 Temperance Street | St. Paul, MN  55101 | (651) 286-8450 

Building a legacy – your legacy. 

Equal Opportunity Employer | wsbeng.com 

K:\02082-013\Admin\Docs\MEMO-JS Stewart Utiilty Review 101816.docx 

Memorandum 

To:  Cindy Nash – Hanover City Planner 

From: Justin Messner, PE – Hanover City Engineer 

Cc: Brian Hagen – Hanover City Administrator 
Scott Dahlke – Civil Engineering Site Design 

Date: October 18, 2016 

Re: JS Stewart Companies Site Plan Review   
WSB Project No. 02082-013 

As requested, we have reviewed the JS Stewart Companies Site grading and utility plans as prepared by 
Civil Engineering Site Design, dated October 11, 2016, and we offer the following comments: 

Sheet C3 – Utility Plan 

1. Per Standard Detail SAN-10, 4” Sanitary Sewer services shall have a minimum slope of 2%.

2. The sanitary sewer inside drop shall be a minimum of 6” diameter.  6” diameter pipe shall extend
20’ from the manhole then reduce to 4”. 6” sanitary sewer pipe shall be C-900.  See detail
attached.

Sheet C5 – Details 

1. Include the attached detail for sanitary sewer inside drop inlet manhole.



SECTION

CASTING AND ADJUSTMENT

RINGS AS SPECIFIED.

MANHOLE STEPS, 16" ON CENTER.

ALL PIPES SHALL BE CUT TO BE 2" INSIDE

MANHOLE AT THE PIPE'S MIDPOINT AND

HAVE A WATER TIGHT SEAL.

(SEE SPECIFICATIONS)

ALL DOG HOUSES SHALL

BE GROUTED ON THE

INSIDE AND OUTSIDE.

INVERT AND BENCHES ARE TO BE

POURED IN THE FIELD TO INCLUDE

THE 90° BEND. INVERT SHOULD BE

1/2 DIAMETER OF PIPE AND

BENCHES SLOPED 2" TOWARD

INVERT.

C
-
9
0
0
 
D

R
O

P

(
L
E
N

G
T
H

 
&

 
S
I
Z
E
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

20' C-900

(SIZE VARIES)

VARIES

12"-16"

4
'
-
0
"

27"

5' DIA

MIN

C-900 TEE MODIFIED

(SEE BELOW)

BELL MUST BE

POSITIONED WITHIN

MANHOLE WALL

SANITARY SEWER INSIDE DROP

INLET MANHOLE

CUT AND

SALVAGE TOP

PORTION OF TEE

(12"-16")

BOLT SALVAGED PORTION OF

TEE FOR EXTENSION WITH

STAINLESS STEEL BOLTS

C-900

90° BEND

STAINLESS STEEL PIPE BRACKET

(MIN. 2 REQUIRED, 5' SPACING)

4"

MIN



















































C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

PROJECT LOCATION

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  

SIT
E

HANOVER, MINNESOTA

WRIGHT COUNTY

SITE

SITE

MINNESOTA

JS STEWART COMPANIES
SITE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

HANOVER, MN



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

PROJECT LOCATION

GENERAL NOTES:

SITE PLAN NOTES:

KEY NOTES:                                                                     

SITE DATA:                    

SETBACK:                              

LEGEND:                                  

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

PROJECT LOCATION

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  

GRADING NOTES

CONCRETE PAVEMENT - LIGHT DUTY

CONCRETE PAVEMENT - HEAVY DUTY

HEAVY DUTY

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

 DITCH DETAIL

3
1



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

PROJECT LOCATION

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  

GENERAL UTILITY NOTES:



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

PROJECT LOCATION

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  

SWPP NARRATIVE

RESPONSIBLE PARTY

TO BE DETERMINED

POLLUTION PREVENTION NOTES

EROSION CONTROL NOTES

EROSION CONTROL MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE

EROSION CONTROL INSTALLATION SCHEDULE

VEGITATION GROUND COVER SCHEDULE

IMPERVIOUS AND DISTURBANCE AREAS

EROSION CONTROL QUANTITIES



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  

CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCINGGENERAL NOTES:



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

PROJECT LOCATION

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  



   

Collaborative Planning, LLC 
145 Hamel Road, Suite D 

Medina, MN  55340 
763-473-0569 

Memorandum 

Date: October 20, 2016 

To: Planning Commission 

From:  Cindy Nash, City Planner 

RE: Public Works Building – Site Plan 

The City is proposing the construction of a Public Works building on a site already owned by the City.  A copy of 
the site plan is included in your packets. 

The design of the plans assumes the simultaneous construction of an industrial building on the property 
adjacent to the east.  In the event that the other project does not proceed, some modifications may be needed 
related to stormwater management, including ponding.  It is requested that these modifications, if needed, be 
allowed to be approved at a later date by staff. 

A portion of the grading is proposed to occur outside of the limits that are/will be owned by the City.  A right of 
entry will be needed in order to proceed. 

Staff has reviewed the proposal and find it to be in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and other City 
regulations.  A comment memo from the City Engineer is included for your reference. 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the site plan be approved subject to the following conditions: 

1.  Development of the site must be in substantial conformance with the plans prepared by Civil 
Engineering Site Design and last revised on October 11, 2016.  If the site plans require 
modifications due to either not being able to obtain the rights of entry required, or due to the 
adjacent site not developing concurrently, then the plan revisions may be approved by the City 
Engineer and City Planner. 

2. Comments from the City Engineer as outlined in his memo dated October 17, 2016 must be 
addressed. 

 



477 Temperance Street | St. Paul, MN  55101 | (651) 286-8450 

Building a legacy – your legacy. 

Equal Opportunity Employer | wsbeng.com 

K:\02082-013\Admin\Docs\Hanover Public Works\MEMO-Utiilty Review 101716.docx 

Memorandum 

To:  Cindy Nash – Hanover City Planner 

From: Justin Messner, PE – Hanover City Engineer 

Cc: Brian Hagen – Hanover City Administrator 
Scott Dahlke – Civil Engineering Site Design 

Date: October 17, 2016 

Re: Hanover Public Works Facility Site Plan Review   
WSB Project No. 02082-013 

As requested, we have reviewed the Hanover Public Works Facility Site grading and utility plans as 
prepared by Civil Engineering Site Design, dated October 11, 2016, and we offer the following comments: 

Sheet C4 – Utility Plan 

1. Per Standard Detail SAN-10, 4” Sanitary Sewer services shall have a minimum slope of 2%.



   Building a legacy – your legacy.  540 Gateway Boulevard  
  Burnsville, MN 55337 
 Tel:  952-737-4660 
      Fax:  763-541-1700 

Memorandum 
 
To: Scott Dahlke, Civil Engineering Site Design 
 
From: Leena Jaakola, WSB 
 
Cc: Justin Messner, WSB 
 
Date: October 14, 2016 
 
Re: Hanover Public Works Facility Stormwater Review 
 WSB Project No. 02082-013  
 

 
 
A proposed plan and stormwater calculations were submitted for the Hanover Public Works Facility.  
The proposed project is located at 11149 5th Street NE, MN. The proposed improvements are on a 5 acre 
site. There is also an additional 5 acre parcel located to the east of the proposed Hanover Public Work 
building. A pond is proposed adjacent to 5th Street that has been designed to meet the City of Hanover’s 
Water Quality, Volume Control, and Rate Control requirements for both properties. 
 
The following materials were reviewed as a part of this submittal: 

 Civil Site Plans, dated 10/11/2016 

 HydroCAD output, dated 10/12/2016 
 
The following comments must be addressed before City Approval: 
 
Storm Design 

 The current swales are proposed at a grade of 0.2%. Care should be taken during construction to 
ensure there is at least 0.2% to help minimize the likelihood of standing water.  
 

Infiltration Basin Design 

 Based on a site visit on 10/3/16 it was determined that there is approximately 3 feet between 
the bottom of the infiltration basin and the groundwater.  If this separation to groundwater 
ends up being less than 3 feet the infiltration basin may not function as designed.  

 
 



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

PROJECT LOCATION

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  

SITE

HANOVER, MINNESOTA

WRIGHT COUNTY

SITE

SITE

MINNESOTA

HANOVER PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY
SITE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

HANOVER, MN



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

PROJECT LOCATION

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  

GENERAL NOTES:

SITE PLAN NOTES:

KEY NOTES:                                                                     

SITE DATA:                    

SETBACK:                              

LEGEND:                                  



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

PROJECT LOCATION

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  

GRADING NOTES

CONCRETE PAVEMENT - LIGHT DUTY

CONCRETE PAVEMENT - HEAVY DUTY

HEAVY DUTY

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

 DITCH DETAIL

3
1



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

PROJECT LOCATION

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  

HORIZ: 1"=50'

VERT:   1"=5'



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

PROJECT LOCATION

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  

GENERAL UTILITY NOTES:

STRUCTURE OCS-1
CUSTOM GRATE  DETAIL



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

PROJECT LOCATION

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  

SWPP NARRATIVE

RESPONSIBLE PARTY

TO BE DETERMINED

POLLUTION PREVENTION NOTES

EROSION CONTROL NOTES

EROSION CONTROL MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE

EROSION CONTROL INSTALLATION SCHEDULE

VEGITATION GROUND COVER SCHEDULE

IMPERVIOUS AND DISTURBANCE AREAS

EROSION CONTROL QUANTITIES



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  

CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCINGGENERAL NOTES:



C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

SI
TE

 D
E

SI
G

N

PROJECT LOCATION

INDEX OF CIVIL SITE DRAWINGS:  


	10-24-16 Agenda
	UCHAIRU           UBOARD MEMBERSU
	STAN KOLASA      JIM SCHENDEL
	MICHELLE ARMSTRONG
	UCOUNCIL LIAISONU     DEAN KUITUNEN
	DOUG HAMMERSENG       MICHAEL CHRISTENSON


	9-26-16 Minutes
	comments pc oct2016 stewart
	MEMO-JS Stewart Utiilty Review 101816
	Inside Drop.pdf
	WBRY_SAN-07


	JS Stewart Site Plan Application
	JS STEWART - Elevations
	JS Stewart Site Plans 2016-10-11
	00590 C0 LocationPlan
	00590 C1 Site Plan
	00590 C2 Grading Plan
	00590 C3 Utility Plan
	00590 C4 SWPPP
	00590 C5 Details
	00590 C6 Landscape

	comments pc oct2016 public works
	MEMO-Utiilty Review 101716
	Engineer Memo - Utility Review 10-17-16
	Hanover Public Works -- Civil Site Plans 2016-10-11
	00588 C0 Location Plan
	00588 C1 Site Plan
	00588 C2 Grading Plan
	00588 C3 Profile Plan
	00588 C4 Utility Plan
	00588 C5 SWPPP
	00588 C6 Details
	00588 C7 Landscape




